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SEPTEMBER 9, 2009
STATE OF MONTANA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL ADDENDUM

RFP NO.: 10-1658L
TO BE OPENED: WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 16, 2009  
TITLE: BROADBAND MAPPING - MONTANA DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
ADDENDUM NO. 1
To All Offerors:

Attached are written questions received in response to this RFP.  These questions, along with the State’s response, become an official amendment to this RFP.

All other terms of the subject "Request for Proposal" are to remain as previously stated.

Acknowledgment of Addendum:

The offeror for this solicitation must acknowledge receipt of this addendum.  This page must be submitted at the time set for the proposal opening or the proposal may be disqualified from further consideration.

I acknowledge receipt of Addendum No. 1.

Signed: ___________________________________

Company Name: ____________________________

Date: ______________________

Sincerely,

Jill M. Lotter,
Contracts Officer

	Section Number
	Question Number
	Question & Answer

	1.1
	1. 
	Q.   In the non-binding pre-proposal teleconference on August 25th, Department of Commerce staff mentionedthey would be posting the State of Montana proposal to NTIA for broadband mapping funds. If thatdocument, or any accompanying submissions included a budget narrative or budget request, can that budgetnarrative and/or budget request also be posted on the state website?  If so, when will the documents be posted?

A.
The State of Montana’s Broadband Mapping grant application, including the project narrative and budget narrative, is provided as a separate document (Attachment A-Grant Application). It is also available on the Department of Commerce website at http://recovery.mt.gov/commerce/broadband/default.mcpx.


	
	2. 
	Q.
We would like to know if you have posted your NTIA SBDD application online yet. As instructed I checked the Department of Commerce website but have been unable to locate it thus far.

A.
The State of Montana’s Broadband Mapping grant application, including the project narrative and budget narrative, is provided as a separate document (Attachment A-Grant Application). It is also available on the Department of Commerce website at http://recovery.mt.gov/commerce/broadband/default.mcpx.


	3.3 &
4.1.3
	3. 
	Q.
I have been interpreting the references to large geographical scale as meaning “geographic map scale approaching 1,” i.e. very detailed.  Large geographical scale could also mean “large in scope, regional or statewide.”  Both meanings are clearly referenced on page 15, Section 3.3:

1.      Demonstrate successful completion of three (3) identical or similar data collection projects on a large geographical scale, preferably state or regional, where data was collected to an address level.  Proposals should include a representative sample of work products, including data maps, and references.

However, I was working on our response this morning, and it is not quite as clear in Section 4.1.3 as to which meaning your are referring in Section 4.1.3.c requesting sample work products on page 19:

c)    Provide sample work products from previous successful (identical or similar) data collection projects on a large geographical scale.  Proposals should include a representative sample of work products, including data maps.

If you want detailed examples of “scale approaching 1,” or a generalized example of a “large scope” mapping project, these could be included in the response as graphics on 8 ½” x 11”, 8 ½” x 14”, or 11” x 17” pages.  However, if you want a map of large scale and large scope, then you are requesting plotted maps, for example of a statewide parcel mapping effort, which could be submitted with a response. 

We can satisfy your requirements either way, but dealing with a large number of plots submitted by respondents may be difficult for your reviewers.  

Can you clarify your preferences, if any?  I don’t see anything which precludes submission of plots.

A.
Our intent is that the examples relate to projects that covered a large geographical area, i.e., a statewide or regional (e.g., multi-county or multi-state) project.  We are not specifying a preference on the scale of the maps submitted.

	3.0
	4. 
	Q.
How will the state provide the vendor timely access to key governmental and not-for-profit agencies and existing consortiums, collaborations and networks?
A.
The State will provide access to data in electronic format and will provide a list of appropriate contacts within state government and currently identified consortiums and networks.  The vendor will be expected to expand on and further develop networks and partnerships as part of the project.

	3.0
	5. 
	Q.
How will the state provide the vendor timely access to key for-profit organizations and existing consortiums, collaborations and networks?

A.
While the State will work with the successful contractor to identify for-profits, consortiums, collaborations and networks, ultimately it is up to the contractor to provide a solution as how they will identify and work with these organizations in a timely manner.

	3.0
	6. 
	Q.
How will the state provide the vendor timely access to key service providers?

A.
While the State will work with the successful contractor to identify key service providers, ultimately it is up to the contractor to provide a solution as how they will identify and work with these organizations in a timely manner.

	3.0
	7. 
	Q.
Can the vendor identify those entities they would plan to partner with without having a formal commitment for that entity to do so? 

A.
The State will plan to partner with local governments, the federal government, private providers, and others recommended by the vendor. There will also be partnerships among state agencies such as the Department of Commerce, Department of Administration, Montana State Library, Department of Natural Resources and Conservation, and other agencies.  The vendor will be expected to expand on and further develop partnerships as part of the project.

	3.0
	8. 
	Q.
More specifically, could the Vendor identify local, regional and state-level 911 authorities as a partner?

A.
Yes, the State would consider local, regional, and state-level 911 authorities as potential partners.

	3.0
	9. 
	Q.
Given the timing of this RFP, the time it will take to select and sign a vendor contract and the amount of data required to satisfy item 3.4.1.d, the November date seems unrealistic. What alternative date would you accept?

A.
The State wishes to comply with the NTIA requirements to the greatest extent possible.  The State did propose an alternative timeline in their response to the NTIA NOFA that is copied below.  If a response to this RFP contains other alternative timelines they will be evaluated on their merits.

The Department understands the NTIA deliverables, as restated in the “Data” section of this project narrative, and also understands the aggressive timeline.  The Department concurs that time is of the essence in order to achieve the economic stimulus component of this project. Montana shares the NTIA vision, and believes the required deliverables will ultimately lead to the best product on a national scale.  The Department’s approach to this project is to meet the goal of Montana’s piece of the national map by February 17, 2011 with data that is accurate, complete, and verifiable.  That said, quality should not suffer to meet a timeline, and should any component of the project not meet the timeline deadlines proscribed below, the Department will coordinate and fully communicate with NTIA on the status of these project components.

August 13, 2009—State issues broadband mapping RFP.

August 25, 2009—Pre-proposal conference.

September 16, 2009---Proposal due date.

September 25, 2009—Deadline for choosing data/mapping contractor

November 1, 2009 – State delivers a point data set of community anchor institutions with one characteristic – whether broadband data is available or not.

January 1, 2010 – Memorandums of Understanding (or Non-Disclosure Agreements) are signed between the State and broadband providers.  Broadband providers unwilling or unable to comply with NTIA data requirements are identified.

March 1, 2010 – A predictive map of broadband availability is delivered to NTIA.  This map will be based on best available data at the time, and is likely to be an aggregation of broadband provider and freely available data.  The level of resolution will minimally be Census Tract polygons, although the State will strive for Census Block Group information.

March 2, 2010 – Start of urban areas parcel-based broadband availability.  Database development for characteristic/attribute data begins.  Local government address data sharing begins. Collection of last-mile, middle-mile, and backbone interconnection points and attributes begins.

July 1, 2010 – Progress map of urban parcel-based broadband availability sent to NTIA.  This product will include the broadband status of 80% of the urban parcels.  Updated predictive map is provided to NTIA that includes areas of wireless service that is not address specific.  Application development on interactive mapping website begins.  State advertises for third party quality control/quality (QA/QC) assurance vendor to review final data delivery

September 1, 2010 – State reviews responses for third party QA/QC vendor and hires preferred candidate.  QA/QC begins.

December 1, 2011 – All available provider data is entered into the Oracle Database.  Test products including address lists, required reports, and text-delimited files are output and checked to insure they meet the specifications required in the technical appendix.

February 1, 2011 – State publishes interactive State broadband map and provides NTIA a link to the map.  State sends all address lists, required reports, text-delimited files, shape files and all other data to satisfy NTIA deliverables.



	General
	10. 
	Q.
We respectfully request a copy of all replies to the vendor community as appropriate.

A.
The State believes this request is for a copy of all questions submitted by potential Offerors and the State’s respective answers. All questions received by the deadline established in Section 1.4.2 (September 1, 2009) and State responses are included or provided as attachments to this document.

	
	11. 
	Q.
Please provide a list of the participants in the conference call.

A.
Please see Attachment B – Pre-Proposal Conference Call Firms Registered posted as a separate document in response to this question.

	
	12. 
	Q.
What companies received notification of the Broadband Mapping RFP posting?

A.
The State electronically notified over 550 companies. Please see Attachment C – Vendor Notification for this list. 


	
	13. 
	Q.
On page three under Instructions to Offeror’s of the RFP references a sample budget form that was to be provided.  Do we need to submit our costs on this form or create our own cost sheet?  
A.
The instruction referenced is to “Use the forms provided”.  As an example, the instructions list a sample budget form as a possible form to provide. A sample budget form was not provided with this RFP…however, Offerors must include the items listed in bold on Page 3. The “Affidavit for Trade Secret Confidentiality” is only required should the Offeror claim information to be confidential or proprietary as described within the RFP.




